
1 
 

 

TOWN OF CAROLINA SHORES 

  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

MEETING MINUTES 
January 10 2019 

1:00 p.m. 

 

 

Mayor Joyce Dunn called the January 10, 2019 Economic Development Commission meeting 
to order at 1:03 p.m. Commissioners present: Joseph J. Przywara, Bill Brennan, Gere Dale, 
Greg Davis and Beverly Mayhew. Also, present: Jon Mendenhall, Town Administrator and 
Nicole Hewett, Town Clerk. 
 
Absent:  None 
 

Approval of Minutes: 

 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 8, 2018. 
COMMISSIONER DALE SECONDED THE MOTION.  MAYOR DUNN CALLED 
FOR A VOTE AND MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE. 

 
Administrative Reports: 

 

Time Management - Mr. Mendenhall said he wanted to talk about time management and the 
calendar.  Mr. Mendenhall said we are coming into a period where we don’t have a lot on this 
agenda.  Mr. Mendenhall said the EDC meeting is scheduled every month at 1:00pm prior to the 
regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners.  Mr. Mendenhall said he wanted to ascertain the 
pleasure of the Board about cancelling some meetings if we find that the agenda is very light.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said this is not the Board of Commissioners meeting but the Economic Development 
Commission meeting.  Mr. Mendenhall said of course if we have things on the agenda, it would be 
good to have a meeting.  Mr. Mendenhall said we are getting to a period where we are not seeing 
any inquiries and you will find we do have some updates on when The Farm at Brunswick and 
Calabash Lakes are expected to be done.  Mr. Mendenhall said you will be pleased to know that we 
are probably within the one-year window with those.  Mr. Mendenhall said maybe not vertical but 
all horizontal in the last phases.  Mr. Mendenhall said we are finding ourselves with very little 
business and he knows that time is valuable and they don’t make any more of it. Mr. Mendenhall 
asked the Commission how they feel about that.  Mayor Dunn said they could leave it to Mr. 
Mendenhall to let them know if they need to cancel.  Commissioner Davis said if there is nothing on 
the agenda, can’t we just send out a Cancellation Notice.  Mr. Mendenhall said we can do that but he 
wants to make sure that everyone is happy with that.  Commissioner Brennan said he is thrilled.  
Commissioner Davis said he hates the fact that sometimes they come there for a 5-minute meeting 
and then we have 55 minutes to wait until the next meeting. Mayor Dunn said yes, she could get a 
lot done during that timeframe.  Commissioner Dale asked what the possibility was of starting the 
meeting time at 1:30 pm; if we have a meeting and have a short agenda.  Commissioner Dale said it 
is personally difficult for him to get there at 1:00 pm but he doesn’t want that to wag the dog but it is 
a thought.  Commissioner Davis said yes, if we have a meeting, we can say it is moved to 1:30 pm.  
Commissioner Davis said but we do have our schedule out for a year already.  Mrs. Hewett said 
what she can do is revise your 2019 EDC Meeting Schedule to start at 1:30 pm and send that out to 
everybody, post it and keep it on file.  Mrs. Hewett said and then if Mr. Mendenhall decides there is 
no business, she can send out/post a Cancellation Notice due to lack of business.  Mayor Dunn said 



2 
 

what if they need more time.  Commissioner Davis said we could recess the meeting and then go  
back to it.  Mrs. Hewett said to be clear we will change the 2019 EDC Meeting Schedule to 1:30 and 
then cancel it as needed and then if it runs longer, you can recess and go back to it. Mr. Mendenhall 
said there is a time and season for everything.  Mr. Mendenhall said who know in a few months or a 
year things could be different.  Mayor Dunn said she thinks what they are thinking about right now 
is our development activity but as an Economic Development Commission if they realize that 
activity is going to end, we should be thinking about what other economic development should they 
be thinking about. Commissioner Brennan said he thinks that is always the case.  Mayor Dunn said 
she thinks they should think about what other opportunities they would like to look for. 
 
COMMISSIONER BRENNAN MADE A MOTION TO CHANGE THE TIME OF THE 2019 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION MEETING SCHEDULE FROM 1:00 PM TO 
1:30 PM.  COMMISSIONER DAVIS SECONDED THE MOTION.  MAYOR DUNN CALLED 
FOR A VOTE AND MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE. 
 
Mr. Mendenhall said that concludes his report. 
 

New Business: 

 

Annexation Update – Mr. Mendenhall said we met with the Carolina Shores North stakeholders 
before Christmas, probably before Thanksgiving, it has been a while.  Mr. Mendenhall said we are 
ready to write that letter to the delegation, to the General Assembly to allow for a Referendum on 
the question of annexation.  Mr. Mendenhall said he wanted to know the pleasure of the EDC.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said we can draft it up and have each one of you sign it, it will be a nice letter from the 
Board of Commissioners.  Mr. Mendenhall said he did want to run it through the EDC first. Mayor 
Dunn said are we satisfied that we have sufficient information that this is a project that we would 
like to go forward with.  Mr. Mendenhall said we paid for the study about revenues and conditions 
of roads and everything. Mayor Dunn said are we satisfied that is enough information.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said that is a question for all of you.  Mayor Dunn said we don’t want to say okay let’s 
go forward and then something comes up and we say let’s go backwards.  Mr. Mendenhall said once 
you are at the level of the General Assembly, you are moving forward.  Commissioner Davis said 
the financial expectation vs. the financial expenditures were favorable for us in that regard.  
Commissioner Davis said he doesn’t see a reason why we wouldn’t want to expand.  Commissioner 
Davis said any chance to make the Town stronger and bigger, plus those people are just left out 
there on their own. Mr. Mendenhall said they read a lot of news from Horry County and this whole 
idea of the flood conversion canal as it is supposed to get really close to Carolina Shores North, the 
folks at Carolina Shores North are concerned about that too.  Mr. Mendenhall said they are very 
concerned about the highway and drainage.  Mayor Dunn said it gets confusing because we will 
have the community of Carolina Shores, Carolina Shores North and Carolina Shores the Town.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said that is correct. Mayor Dunn said at some point, we need to address all this because 
it is very confusing to people. Commissioner Dale asked Mr. Mendenhall how Carolina Shores 
North faired with the Hurricane back in September /October.  Mr. Mendenhall said they faired pretty 
well.  Mr. Mendenhall said some of the roadside ditches were out in the street, particularly further 
back by their clubhouse.  Mr. Mendenhall said we didn’t ride it through during the movement of the 
eye but it was the next day or maybe eighteen hours after the storm.  Mr. Mendenhall said one of our 
employees lives over there.  Mr. Mendenhall said they do have some overhead electric.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said their situation with utilities are very much like the Acreage.  Mr. Mendenhall said 
overhead electric, larger lots and that sort of thing.  Mr. Mendenhall said they did not have any 
house flooding or anything like that.  Commissioner Davis said they had a few trees down.  
Commissioner Davis said when he went back through there well after the storm, most of trees that 
were down were on the empty lots.  Mayor Dunn said that is where most of the trees are. 
Commissioner Brennan said that makes it cheaper to clear the lot.   



3 
 

 
COMMISSIONER BRENNAN MADE A MOTION TO WRITE THE LETTER TO THE 
GENERAL ASSEMBLY TO ALLOW FOR A REFERENDUM ON THE QUESTION OF  
ANNEXATION.  COMMISSIONER DAVIS SECONDED THE MOTION.  MAYOR DUNN  
ASKED IF THERE WERE ANY FURTHER DISCUSSION. MAYOR DUNN CALLED FOR A 
VOTE AND MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE. 
 
Mr. Mendenhall said he will draft a letter and it needs to come before the Board of Commissioners 
and it will be on the Board of Commissioners February Agenda. 
 
Library Parcel – Mr. Mendenhall said he has one more item regarding annexation.  Mr. Mendenhall 
said there was some thought and some discussion with the County about annexing the library parcel.  
Mr. Mendenhall asked the Board of Commissioners if they were interested in that or wanted to 
pursue that. Mr. Mendenhall said he feels that the hurricane and recovery delayed all that. 
Commissioner Brennan said he thinks it would be an excellent economic point and social point to 
say that we have a library in Town.  Commissioner Brennan said we can’t say we have a church or 
movie theater.  Commissioner Davis said once the library is in our Town, not only will we take 
ownership of that Town wise but maybe it would also open up the use of that facility because they 
are part of the Town.  Mr. Mendenhall asked if the Commission wanted to take action on that today. 
 
COMMISSIONER BRENNAN MADE A MOTION TO EXPLORE THE POSSIBILITY OF 
ANNEXING THE LIBRARY AND THE PLOT OF LAND AROUND IT.  COMMISSIONER 
DAVIS SECONDED THE MOTION.  MAYOR DUNN CALLED FOR A VOTE AND MOTION 
CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE. 
 
Growth Activity Update – Mr. Mendenhall said we met with D.R. Horton yesterday and they went 
through some issues and dates.  Mr. Mendenhall said they talked about The Farm at Brunswick and 
Calabash Lakes.  Mr. Mendenhall said they talked about Shingletree Canal and transferring it and 
previously the Board of Commissioners wanted to wait until construction was further along.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said we are at a point now where he has talked to the attorney about it.  Mr. Mendenhall 
said the attorney has suggested that D.R. Horton provide a map and a plot plan of the lots and the 
easements that they are going to transfer so that due diligence and title opinions can be done.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said with the idea that we would get to some kind of timeline around July 1, 2019.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said that would give us about six months of study to make sure that what they are 
transferring is what needs to be transferred.  Mr. Mendenhall said he wanted to get input as to if that 
is the timeline that the Commission thought about.  Commissioner Davis said they are not going to 
be in there much longer than that and Mr. Mendenhall said that is correct.  Mr. Mendenhall said   
D.R. Horton is saying that vertical construction will be done by the end of 2020.  Mr. Mendenhall 
said they will be platted out and all of their plats will be recorded by August of 2019.  Commissioner 
Davis said very similar to Calabash Lakes and Mr. Mendenhall said yes.  Commissioner Davis said 
that would be all the infrastructure and done with all the things on the ground, just waiting for the 
houses to be finished.  Mr. Mendenhall said he doesn’t know at what point turnover begins.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said to Commissioner Przywara there is talk of a Transition Committee.  Commissioner 
Davis said we already have one at Calabash Lakes, you’re already in the process. Commissioner 
Przywara said they had an annual meeting when he wasn’t here in December.  Commissioner 
Przywara said he heard from some people that they already have a transition team ready to go.  
Commissioner Davis said we have ours set in place too.  Mr. Mendenhall said what we don’t want 
to do is get into a situation where we are not dealing with a developer, we are dealing with a HOA 
and the HOA has freshly been turned over and they don’t know the other issues that are trying to be 
addressed.  Commissioner Davis said he has no problem with the date of July for Shingletree.  
Commissioner Brennan said his thought would be to let it go until January 2020 only because you 
don’t have to deal with hurricane season. Commissioner Brennan said that is a plus and a minus.  



4 
 

Commissioner Brennan said we are only talking about six months. Commissioner Davis said the key 
is that the transition is already in place at both communities or at least beginning, there is a point 
where they have to transfer.  Commissioner Davis said they are going to get that about nine months 
before they finish the homes.  Commissioner Przywara said at The Farm there is a certain 
percentage or until the last home is built.  Commissioner Davis said ours at Calabash Lakes does not 
say that.  Commissioner Davis said ours says 85% or seven years.  Commissioner Davis said in our 
case, it could happen before January.  Commissioner Davis said they are hoping it doesn’t as they 
would like to leave it in their hands for as long as possible because then they are responsible.  Mayor 
Dunn said what do we need to do to position ourselves quickly.  Mr. Mendenhall said you probably 
need to do all of these things; get the survey, plot plan, do the title search and all of the title opinion 
work and get the transfer document put together for legal.  Mr. Mendenhall said have it ready to go 
and then you can wait for as long as you desire before you ratify it.  Mr. Mendenhall said they can 
ratify it at any time. Mr. Mendenhall said then you would be golden. Commissioner Davis why 
don’t we shoot for July 1st to do their part and we can be ready to go.  Mr. Mendenhall said you are 
going to have to do the title because you wouldn’t trust anybody else to do the title.  Commissioner 
Davis said they will guarantee all the easements correct and Mr. Mendenhall said yes. Mr. 
Mendenhall said they are also going to have to take down trees to access this thing and that is 
something in itself.  It was the consensus of the Board to handle the items above as discussed.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said they talked about Phase 15 and that is going to the Planning Board this month.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said then it will go to the Board of Commissioners in February.  Mr. Mendenhall said 
that will leave us two Phases left which are 16 & 17.  Mr. Mendenhall said they will have a 
preliminary plat has already been done and it’s already gone to the Board of Commissioners.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said they plan on starting construction by the end of February, weather permitting.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said they anticipate being complete with construction and into a final plat.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said this is the last plat of the last Phase of the last section at The Farm in August 2019.  
Commissioner Przywara asked in that Phase, is that going to drain into Shingletree or another 
stream.  Mr. Mendenhall said some of the back portions of those lots drain through the Prince 
property and some drain into what we call the Little Caw Caw up on Thomasboro.  Commissioner 
Przywara said it doesn’t impact Shingletree through The Farm.  Mr. Mendenhall said the Little Caw 
Caw is what goes through Brunswick Plantation.  Mr. Mendenhall said HOA and the Developer 
would like the Town to consider taking over the roads in Phases 5 & 7, which is the smaller phase. 
Mr. Mendenhall said it’s the smaller phase probably built before 2014.  Mr. Mendenhall said the 
roads are Cobblers, Rocking Porch and Cattle Run, the roads are narrow and they are private right 
now.  Mayor Dunn asked if they meet our standards. Commissioner Davis said no.  Commissioner 
Przywara said the reason they were never taken over originally was because it’s a very narrow road 
and now that people are parking in their driveways, they are in the roadway. Commissioner Davis 
said it doesn’t meet the standards.  Mr. Mendenhall said he told them to write a letter.  
Commissioner Przywara said as a resident, you don’t want the Town to take it over because then 
you are going to have to pay maintenance fees on it.  Commissioner Davis said correct. 
Commissioner Przywara said in his opinion, that is a liability issue and Commissioner Davis said it 
is. Commissioner Davis said it can’t go back and be fixed either.  Mayor Dunn said correct, then you 
would be in somebody’s front door.  Commissioner Davis said it was done wrong.  Commissioner 
Davis said as much as he hates to say we are going to leave this with the HOA, for them to deal with 
the liability for the Town would be extensive. Mayor Dunn asked if were obliged to take this over.  
Mr. Mendenhall said no, it is a ministerial act.  Mr. Mendenhall said it may need 22 feet of asphalt. 
Commissioner Davis said that is a big cry from 40 feet. Commissioner Davis said those poor people 
park right in their living room, literally. Commissioner Mayhew said is she correct that we are under 
no legal obligation to ever take those roads.  Mr. Mendenhall said that is correct.  Commissioner 
Davis said as a matter of fact, we have never accepted a road that doesn’t meet NCDOT standards. 
Commissioner Davis said that has been one of our areas where we could say no, we’re not taking 
them. Commissioner Davis said that precedence has been set. Mr. Mendenhall said he doesn’t know 
if it is coming from the homeowners, it might just be coming from the HOA.  Mayor Dunn said if 



5 
 

she bought a house there and the realtor said there may be a problem with the road one day, she 
wouldn’t like that. Mr. Mendenhall said there is a sign that is up that says the roads are private. 
Commissioner Davis said that has been there as long as he can remember. Commissioner Przywara 
said he thinks that was a condition of the builder. Mr. Mendenhall said maybe that was a condition 
and now that they got their approvals, they want to circumvent what was agreed to previously. 
Commissioner Przywara said he doesn’t recall that part. Commissioner Przywara said he does know 
that it was built incorrectly and there was a stipulation that they had to tell people that lived there 
that it was a private road. Commissioner Davis said the developer knew from the beginning that it 
was going to be forever but now all of a sudden, they want us to take them. Mr. Mendenhall said 
maybe they thought that enough time had elapsed.  Mr. Mendenhall said he would like to discuss 
Calabash Lakes.  Mr. Mendenhall said at Calabash Lakes they discussed the drainage at 116 
Calabash Lakes Blvd. and they said they would go and walk that.  Mr. Mendenhall said they want to 
talk about road dedication and they have received our lengthy road dedication packet.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said they are thinking about dedicating Phases 1, 2, and 3, basically everything but the 
Boulevard and Phase 4 and 5 and they would do those in a second takedown. Mr. Mendenhall said 
they wanted some guidance on that from the Economic Development Commission.  Mr. Mendenhall 
said is that something that would be advisable. Commissioner Davis said well they can’t do Phase 3 
because they still have to put a second coat on it.  Mr. Mendenhall said they would do the second 
coat.  Commissioner Davis said that is part of the dedication process and Mr. Mendenhall said yes. 
Commissioner Davis said section 3 still has a huge chunk that needs a second coat.  Commissioner 
Davis said those three sections excluding the Boulevard have no construction traffic, so he has no 
problem with that.  Commissioner Davis said as long as the Boulevard is separate and Phases 4, 5, 
and 6 which is a part of Phase 3, you have to be careful with that.  Mr. Mendenhall said do you think 
they will have utilities in for those townhouses.  Commissioner Davis said they are duets and they 
have to tear up the parking areas and that is part of the roadway and new curbing.  Commissioner 
Davis said Phase 1 and 2 easy but not the Boulevard.  Commissioner Davis said Phase 3, after they 
fix Phase 6 because it is connected. Mr. Mendenhall asked if everyone was amenable to that and it 
has to be looked at by an engineer.  Commissioner Davis said Phase 6 is part of Phase 3.  
Commissioner Mayhew said they are still going to have construction going in there. Commissioner 
Dale asked if we could just do Phase 1 and 2 and Mr. Mendenhall said he would have to ask them. 
Mr. Mendenhall said they were basically thinking half a take down with Phases 1,2 and 3. 
Commissioner Davis said he doesn’t know why they are even asking about 3 because there is so 
much repair to be done with curbing and then the second coat for that one huge section.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said it could be because of the bonded paper they have out.  Commissioner Davis said 
trying to get rid of some because they are opening up Phase 4.  Mr. Mendenhall said the bond on 
Phase 4 is something like $800,000.00. Mr. Mendenhall said there is a lot of bonded paper. 
Commissioner Dale said why don’t we go back to them and tell them we can do Phase 1 and 2 and 
see if they want to do that piece. Commissioner Davis said as long as they meet the standard and 
have been inspected and Phase 3 when they finish it and Phase 6 is finished. Commissioner Davis 
said they made up Phase 6, it is actually part of Phase 3. Mr. Mendenhall said he thinks 
Commissioner Dale’s recommendation is the way to go.  It was the consensus of the Board, to have 
them fill out the road dedication packet for Phases 1 and 2.  Mr. Mendenhall said it will take about 
60 days before it comes back around to the Board. Mr. Mendenhall said that Phase 4 has been 
recorded and is in construction.  Mr. Mendenhall said Phase 5 should be done in 2-3 months.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said Phase 4 is in construction and has a bonded plat associated with that as well as 
Phase 6.  Mr. Mendenhall said you are looking at 2-3 more months with Phase 5.  Mr. Mendenhall 
said probably 2-3 months more in Phase 4 on vertical construction. Mr. Mendenhall said that 
horizontal construction should be done fairly soon weather permitting.  Commissioner Davis said 2-
3 more months vertically on Phase 4, no. Mr. Mendenhall said he has that on Phase 5 and 
Commissioner Davis said Phase 5, yes.  Commissioner Davis said Phase 4 is the back section and 
they have 11 homes started with no infrastructure in yet.  Commissioner Davis said there are 67 
homes going in.  Mr. Mendenhall said then 2-3 months is inaccurate, it’s more like a year.  Mr. 



6 
 

Mendenhall said in regards to Phase 6, they are saying March of 2019 to start. Commissioner Davis 
said they are building the new duets on his street and then will move the people that are building 
over to Phase 6.  Commissioner Brennan said he doesn’t need to worry about the emergency road 
yet.  Mr. Mendenhall said the emergency road has had a lot of problems. Mr. Mendenhall said they 
were going to try and get it permitted for a culvert but now they are talking about building a bridge.  
Mr. Mendenhall said it will be a single lane bridge, 70-foot span to keep the water backing up from 
a culvert situation.  Mr. Mendenhall said they have the price for that and it is a $100,000.00 bridge.  
Mr. Mendenhall said it should start in the spring. Commissioner Davis said that bridge is a lot easier 
to keep closed then a roadway. Mr. Mendenhall said it won’t obstruct any flow.  Mr. Mendenhall 
said that will be a maintenance problem and you will have to replace the deck every two decades as 
it won’t get regular traffic. Mr. Mendenhall said you are looking at 2019 to have that subdivision 
completed. Mr. Mendenhall said they don’t have anything new at this time in our jurisdiction.  
Mayor Dunn asked about the sales signage that goes up on weekends and that our Code 
Enforcement Officer was meeting with them today.  Mayor Dunn said she assumes what is 
happening is the turn-over in the sales office staff.  Mr. Mendenhall reviewed the Permit number 
Packet (on file with Town Clerk) with the Commission. Mr. Mendenhall said there isn’t any data to 
support that permits have declined. Mr. Mendenhall said based on the numbers the Town is the third 
highest in activity level.  Mr. Mendenhall said first is Leland with 192 permits.  Mr. Mendenhall 
said second is Oak Island with 101 permits.  Mr. Mendenhall said third is Carolina Shores with 89 
permits.  Commissioner Davis said we are actually ahead of St. James. Mr. Mendenhall said you can 
look at some of our surrounding neighbors: Calabash 9, Sunset Beach 21, Boiling Spring Lakes 11, 
Bellville 3, Ocean Isle 34 and Shallotte 13.  Mr. Mendenhall said you are right up there with some of 
the bigger towns in the County.  Commissioner Davis said that is good to hear. Mr. Mendenhall said 
to review the value numbers on the chart. Mr. Mendenhall said that gives you an idea of things to 
come. 

 
Public Comment: 
 

None 

 

Commissioner Brennan said he has a couple of questions.  Commissioner Brennan said in regards to 
the billboard, we had an eight-month stand-alone before we could make any changes.  
Commissioner Brennan said at one point we had talked about taking down some trees so we could 
have more visibility.  Mr. Mendenhall said he thinks we are coming up on that. Commissioner Davis 
said that is still an issue. Mr. Mendenhall said there is another issue but it has been too wet to 
address and Commissioner Davis said the corner damage of the billboard.  Mr. Mendenhall said they 
had someone come out and look at it and they think that it may all have to be replaced. Mr. 
Mendenhall said if you want a new copy on it, now would be the time. Commissioner Davis said he 
likes the copy and the billboard but what he hates is the fact that you cannot see it until you are right 
up on it. Commissioner Brennan said the reason he was asking about it was to get better optics from 
the highway.  Commissioner Brennan said the suggestion he would like to make is to take down 
some trees and twist the sign so you can see it from the northbound lane.  Commissioner Davis said 
that is an issue with the structure of the billboard itself. Commissioner Davis said if he is not 
mistaken, it is a two-side billboard. Commissioner Davis said they have just not sold the other side. 
Commissioner Brennan said no, he doesn’t think so because it’s at an angle and Commissioner 
Davis said he knows.  Commissioner Brennan said what are you going to see, you can’t see anything 
from the other side.  Commissioner Brennan said you have trees, think about it.  Commissioner 
Davis said he is just telling you that you are going to ask a company to move their property because 
he is pretty sure that is a two-sided billboard.  Mr. Mendenhall said we can ask.  It was the 
consensus of the Commission to ask that question. Commissioner Davis said the trees definitely 
need to come down and Commissioner Brennan said either that or put it on the other side of the 
road.  Commissioner Davis said there is no visibility at all; you have to be right on the sign to see it.  



7 
 

Commissioner Dale said he agrees with Commissioner Davis but was blown away last night when 
he went to the Keep Brunswick County Beautiful meeting.  Commissioner Dale said two of the 
members came up to him after the meeting and said we saw your billboard when we were down in 
Myrtle Beach.  Commissioner Dale said they said it was wonderful and asked how long it had been 
up.  Commissioner Dale said he was surprised because he thinks it lacks visibility too but he thought 
that was interesting. Commissioner Davis said that is nice to hear. Commissioner Dale said one of 
them asked what it would take to move to Carolina Shores and he said an act of congress.  
Commissioner Brennan said he thinks it is time to do that.  Mr. Mendenhall will get more 
information regarding the billboard.  Commissioner Brennan said the next question is about our 
website.  Commissioner Brennan said have we seen any stats or looking at any stats on the views we 
are getting for our website. Mr. Mendenhall said he doesn’t know but we can run a report.  Mayor 
Dunn said we should run a monthly report and Commissioner Davis said yes, run a report so we 
know how many views we get. Mayor Dunn said if we’re not Getting views, maybe we can do some 
marketing.  Commissioner Brennan said with the SeeClickFix system, how is that working.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said he thinks it is working fine.  Mayor Dunn said are you getting a lot of people that 
are going around it or calling. Mr. Mendenhall said he thinks most of our complaints are phone calls.  
Commissioner Davis said in our community, it will take a long time to get it all turned over to that 
system. Mr. Mendenhall asked if Commissioner Brennan had heard anything and he said no, every 
once and a while he goes in and looks to see what is out there.  Mr. Mendenhall said we do not use 
paper service requests anymore, it all goes through the system. Mr. Mendenhall said anyone can go 
in and see it. Mayor Dunn said so you can tell people they can go in and track the progress on 
service requests and Mr. Mendenhall said that is correct. Mr. Mendenhall said they also still receive 
letters as per the Board’s request and we save all the letters that go out. Commissioner Davis said 
that also keeps up recording what is being done. Commissioner Brennan said we send letters and in 
certain instances do Reverse 911 calls and people will still say they didn’t get any information or 
notification.  Mayor Dunn said she has another item and was going to bring it up at the Monday 
regular meeting but she has been working on a Facebook page for the Town.  Mayor Dunn said we 
talked about that a while ago and she constructed one.  Mayor Dunn said that she has set it up so that 
you can go on it and if you want to see it, you can request to be a friend.  Mayor Dunn said then you 
will be able to see it as she is working on it and comment on it and add things.  Mayor Dunn said it 
is structured so that it is one-way.  Mayor Dunn said nobody can post, nobody can send an email, so 
nobody can send us anything.  Commissioner Davis said as long as it is one-way. Mayor Dunn said 
it is for information only, you go there and read and go away.  Commissioner Davis said as long as 
it is one-way.  Commissioner Davis said if it opens up to where they can read posts….whew. Mayor 
Dunn said a lot of organizations do the one-way because they don’t have the time, even if they 
wanted to respond.  Mayor Dunn said so they don’t want to get into dialogue.  Commissioner 
Brennan asked if they can “Like” it and not comment. Mayor Dunn said she didn’t know, she thinks 
we could.  Commissioner Davis said he thinks they can just “Like” it.  Commissioner Davis said on 
businesses you can hit “Like” but not comment. Mayor Dunn said what is nice about that is that they 
don’t have to “not like” it. Mayor Dunn said go on Facebook and it is Town of Carolina Shores and 
you will probably have to ask to be a friend and if you want to, she will allow you.  Mayor Dunn 
said then you can look at it and think about it. Commissioner Brennan said wow, you really have a 
lot of power.  Mayor Dunn said right now it’s figuring out to set it up with more than just one 
Administrator.  Mayor Dunn said that is her next project.  Mayor Dunn said you don’t want to only 
have one person in the Town to ever make a change to it.  Mayor Dunn said she is working on how 
to figure that out.  Mayor Dunn asked Mrs. Hewett if she has seen it yet.  Mrs. Hewett said Sara and 
her had looked that one day but we will try again.  Mayor Dunn said okay, let her know.  Mrs. 
Hewett said she knows that we will probably want to review the State Statutes on that.  Mr. 
Mendenhall said for public information purposes and employer requests, anything that is on the 
Facebook page is a public record. Mayor Dunn said it is basically the same thing that you would put 
on your website. Mrs. Hewett said she heard that you have to keep that information for ten years but 
she is putting it out there that we should do a little investigation as far as State Statutes and what is 



8 
 

required. Mr. Mendenhall said you can’t campaign on it and Mayor Dunn said no, it is strictly 
informational like the school system, school is open today, school is closed today.  Mayor Dunn said 
the schools all have it, the County government has it, everybody has it. Mayor Dunn said that Mrs. 
Hewett has been very helpful to her by getting her photos for this.  Mayor Dunn said she has been 
very helpful in getting her some photos and by looking at these photos for the website, she found a 
wonderful photo of the entrance to her community when there was snow.  Commissioner Brennan 
said speaking of photos when he goes on the website, he is always looking for something but 
doesn’t pay attention to the photos.  Commissioner Brennan asked if we had ever changed any of 
those photos. Mr. Mendenhall said he doesn’t think they have been changed. Mr. Mendenhall 
looked on the website and said the pictures are the same. Commissioner Davis said he was just on 
the website yesterday.  Mayor Dunn said they are photos that really don’t even represent our Town. 
It was the consensus of the Commission, that the photos need to be changed on the website. 
 

Closed Session: 
 

None 
 

Adjourn: 
 

COMMISSIONER BRENNAN MADE A MOTION TO ADJOURN THE JANUARY 10, 2019 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION MEETING AT 1:53 PM. COMMISSIONER 
DAVIS SECONDED THE MOTION. MAYOR DUNN CALLED FOR A VOTE AND 
MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE. 

 

 

 
 

Mayor 
 
 

Submitted by: 

Nicole Hewett, Town Clerk 
 


